
244 

HISTORIC DISTRICT BOARD OF REVIEW 

Minutes June 22, 2009 

The City of Madison Historic District Board of Review held a regular meeting on mif/dl
/ mCGee '" 

Monday, June 22,2009 at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall. Tony Hertz, chairman, presided prtSellf 
over the meeting with the following board members present: Paul Davis, Linda 
Wenning, Virginia Jorgensen, and Robert Saueressig. Also present were: Mike 
Hoffman, Building Inspector; Mary Jean Stotts, attorney; and Louann Waller, 
secretary. Absent was: Dirk Cheatham. 

There were no changes or corrections to the minutes from the previous meeting. 
P. Davis made the motion to approve the minutes - seconded by M. McGee - all ayes. 
Minutes stand approved as recorded and distributed. 

New Applications: 

1. Christian Powers - c. of A. to replace asphalt shingle roof with a 29 gauge metal 
roof. 
Location: 417 Mill St. 

Zoned: Historic District Residential (HDR) 

Mitch Mackie presented this application. T. Hertz questioned Mr. Mackie if he wants to 
replace the asphalt shingles on the whole roof. Yes, per Mr. Mackie. 
T. Hertz then asked if that is one house. Mr. Mackie answered it used to be a duplex. 

T. Hertz confirmed with Mr. Mackie the desire is to take off the asphalt shingles and 
replace with metal. This is correct per Mr. Mackie as there was storm damage to the roof 
last year, it is leaking, there are two layers on one side and one on the other, was never 
done right to begin with so they want to tear it all off. Mr. Mackie said they don't know 
yet for sure how much damage there is to the roof and won't know that until the roof is 
removed. 

G. Jorgensen asked Mr. Mackie if he plans on using the high rib or the low rib. Mr. 
Mackie said they weren't sure about that - he doesn't really know the difference between 
the two, stability wise, but thinks it will be the low rib and will be a slate color. 

No further questions or comments from the board. No questions or comments from the 
audience. 

Roll call- all ayes. Application approved as applied. 

2. Michelle Lappie - c. of A. to remove existing siding; install insulation board, 
house wrap, soffit, fascia, and new vinyl siding. 
Location: 314 Poplar St. 

Zoned: Historic District Residential (HDR) 

Ms. Lappie and her contractor, Mike Prickett, were present for this application. 
T. Hertz asked ifpart of the siding is already vinyl. This is correct per Ms. Lappie. 
T. Hertz then asked if she is going to leave on the old or replace it. Ms. Lappie answered 
she will replace with a better quality. 

P. Davis asked how many years it has been since this house came before the board - two 
years, three years? Ms. Lappie said she bought it in 2006, the people she bought it from 
refurbished it - believes they purchased it in 2004. 



Page 2 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22,2009 

245 

M. McGee asked Ms. Lappie if she is talking about doing the whole house in vinyl and 
covering the wood that is on there. Yes, per Ms. Lappie. R. Saueressig asked why she is 
leaving the wood and covering with vinyl. Mr. Prickett answered she will leave the wood 
and cover with insulation and house wrap and new vinyl siding. R. Saueressig asked 
why. Mr. Prickett said it is maintenance issues, this is her big thing - it was painted just 
prior to her buying the place about two years ago so she has maintenance issues. Mr. 
Prickett explained that Michelle is a single income. He provided pictures of the house to 
the board members and utilizing the pictures explained the plan. (Unable to hear all the 
details) 

Mr. Prickett said there was about a 500 sq. ft. add on done in 2000 - there were wood 
windows that were taken out and replaced with vinyl windows, and basically what Ms. 
Lappie is going to do is have the band board go all the way around to keep the integrity 
of the house. 

R. Saueressig commented the thing he finds intriguing is the siding. G. Jorgensen asked 
why not scrape and paint with a higher quality paint? Mr. Prickett said it is because of 
the cost factor down the road and the big issue is that Ms. Lappie is a teller at Main 
Source Bank and she works at Key West Shrimp House. 

Ms. Lappie said the issue with painting ... she has done her research on that and in order 
to get the adhesion to where one would want the home would have to have the paint 
burned off, there are multiple layers, and each slat would need to be sanded down to get 
the coal soot and all that off. Ms. Lappie said she has issues with the fire and then after it 
was sanded it would be repainted but there is no guarantee that that's not going to flake 
off in five to six years down the road and she does not have the money to invest, have it 
done now and not have a guarantee that she won't be looking at this five or six years 
down the road. Further, Ms. Lappie said what the board is looking at this paint job is 
less than three years old and they did use high quality paint and scraped and primed it, so 
she is looking at investing more of a long term product on her home. 

P. Davis asked what is the estimate on painting the house, roughly. Ms. Lappie said she 
has spoke with a couple of painters and it would be between $5,000.00 - $8,000.00 in 
labor alone just to get the home ready to be painted, and then getting that done is one 
thing but then there is no guarantee it is going to stick. She said it might flake two or 
three years down the road - she will be looking at this again and honestly she cannot 
afford this financial burden every three to five years and she is afraid to trust a painter. 
R. Saueressig said he thinks the problem is more about moisture coming from the inside 
opposed to what's happening on the outside and whatever is put on the house will end up 
having the same problem until that (the moisture) is taken care of from the inside. 
Ms. Lappie said what she would like to do is to protect the home it is in her financial 
favor to protect the home, hopefully for the life of her mortgage - it's not going to hurt 
the integrity of the original structure, it can be removed and refurbished later down the 
line at the point and hopefully someday she may be able to do that. But, she said in the 
meantime it's a mess frankly, it is exposed to the elements, gets worse every year, needs 
to protect her investment in her home. G. Jorgensen.told Ms. Lappie that she really 
appreciates that Ms. Lappie is looking to try and protect it so that maybe someday the 
siding can be taken off, but if there is a moisture problem coming from ... which is 
probably true, if she's getting that kind of result after only a couple of years, the paint 
probably ... Ms. Lappie said she has spoken with painting contractors and they told her 
everything from moisture to the structure itself - it was put up in the 1800' s, the 
environment ... so in order to make the adhesion better we're talking about sanding each 
slab of the home and burning all that off and frankly she just can't afford to do that 



Page 3 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

246 

without the fear that it is going to reoccur in three to five years. T. Hertz said to do it 
right she would have to go back to the bare wood and come out with it because it looks 
like there are a lot, a lot of different coats of paint on it. Exactly, per Ms. Lappie. 

Mr. Prickett noted that Ms. Lappie just went through the issue of getting the porch ready 
- it has beaded wood soffit, the columns she just redid all that and went through that 
issue, so she kind of picked up the burden of the paint and just the cost for that small 
porch to be done but there's nothing to be done with the beams or the ceiling or the 
columns. 

Ms. Lappie said unfortunately when she bought the house she didn't know she was going 
to have this happen but this is the luck of being a first time homeowner. 

G. Jorgensen said she guessed what they're trying to say is that if Ms. Lappie puts 
something over it you're still going to have moisture problems and might then have more 
problems. G. Jorgensen asked Ms. Lappie if she has gotten quotes for painting. 
Ms. Lappie said she has talked to painters and honestly a lot of them did not quote her 
because they thought it would be too expensive, and she went for two months, asked five 
people for quotes, Mr. Prickett is the only one that showed up and gave her a quote - it is 
just nonsense - painters would tell her oh well, it would be this, it would be that for labor 
- had one fella say he would not give her a quote because she would fall over. Ms. 
Lappie said in her opinion vinyl would be the best route for her because of the financial 
aspect of it. G. Jorgensen asked Ms. Lappie if she knew that the vinyl would fade. 
Mr. Prickett remarked they are not going to paint the vinyl. Mr. Prickett showed the 
board a couple of photos of some homes he did in Audubon Park - were built in the late 
70's early 80's - that vinyl siding ... granted may not look the greatest in the world but 
for the age it is, it doesn't look bad. Mr. Prickett said if you were to try to regulate what 
kind of vinyl siding that is and put it in a barrel, it's going to be at the bottom of the 
barrel. However, he said the vinyl siding that Ms. Lappie is using is a product of 046 
premium product which was originally started through Alcoa - she doesn't want to go 
back to something cheap. 

G. Jorgensen noted the issue they also have to look at is the appropriateness of whether or 
not it is appropriate for the historic district. She further stated she knows there are many 
vinyl siding houses downtown, in fact the downtown is starting to look 
like a vinyl city. 

Ms. Lappie stated another issue with the painting is that she cannot get a guarantee from 
any of the painters, cannot get a guarantee, they won't sign anything, she has spoken with 
Nathan Monroe, spoken with Bart who has done a lot of painting for years (she can't 
remember his last name), spoken with so many she can't recall- can't get a guarantee out 
of any of them and that's an issue with her because if she is going to invest her money 
that she worked very hard for, she wants a guarantee. G. Jorgensen asked what type of 
warranty there is on the vinyl. Mr. Prickett answered it has a lifetime warranty on the 
product itself. G. Jorgensen asked if there is a limited warranty. In reviewing the vinyl 
siding literature, Mr. Prickett advised the board of the limited warranty. Mr. Prickett also 
pointed out the vinyl siding that will be used. 

T. Hertz said with the vinyl siding on the house, it will still breathe. Mr. Prickett told it 
will definitely permeate. Mr. Prickett also said that Ms. Lappie will be able to get a tax 
rebate back next year which will help her a little bit because they are going to insulate the 
outside of the home, going to use Tyvek house wrap to wrap it up, case out the windows 
and trim those out with a product that is called Clear which is a PVC composite - will not 



Page 4 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

be some fly by night kind of product. R. Saueressig commented the house will be so 
tight, it won't be able to breathe and old houses like that were designed to have air 
movement. T. Hertz noted there will be vents. Mr. Prickett said there will be gable 
vents. 

247 

No further questions or comments from the board. No questions or comments from the 
audience. 

Roll call
T.Hertz 
M.McGee 
R. Saueressig 
L. Wenning 
P. Davis 
G. Jorgensen 

Approve 
Approve 
Disapprove 
Approve 
Approve 
Disapprove 

Application is approved as applied. 

3. Ohio Valley Opportunities, Inc. - c. of A. to cover existing roof shingles with a 
standing rib metal roof. 
Location: 314 E. Third St. 

Zoned: Central Business District (CBD) 

Application presented by Robert Armstrong. Mr. Armstrong said there has been some 
damage to the roof - it has been patched before - then had more damage the last two 
storms - put a tarp over a lot of it. He said they are thinking about installing the metal 
roof, but it is possible they will go back to the shingles, however they wanted to have 
both options available to them. He also said they are getting the necessary quotes. 

P. Davis asked Mr. Armstrong if they will cover the existing shingles. Mr. Armstrong 
answered that he can't tell P. Davis definitely as in the process of his discovery it appears 
that's probably a bad idea to cover the existing shingles - they should probably be 
removed before the metal goes down, but at this point he can't say for sure - it just 
depends - this is a nonprofit - depends on the money coming in. Mr. Armstrong told 
they have $6,000.00 worth of insurance and the metal roof quote was right about 
$15,000.00 or something like that. 

G. Jorgensen told Mr. Armstrong if they choose to do an asphalt roof they would not 
need approval. Mr. Armstrong explained if they use shingles they will use a better 
shingle than what is on there now - will go with a 40 year dimensional shingle. 

Audience member, David Ray, said he had no objections to what they are doing just 
wanted to make sure that Gerry Lane (the alley) is not blocked for the duration of the 
work because he lives on Gerry Lane and needs to get in and out of his house. 
Mr. Armstrong told Mr. Ray if the shingles are to be removed, there will probably be a 
dumpster back there for a period of time but it will stay on the armory side and the Board 
of Works would have to approve for a dumpster to be in there for any period of time. 
Mr. Armstrong also told Mr. Ray that he would be able to get in and out on Third St. 
Further discussion on dumpster placement and access for Mr. Ray. 

No further questions or comments from the board or audience. 

Roll call - all ayes. Application approved as applied. 



Page 5 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

248 

4. Earl E. Bennett - c. of A. to construct a storage building. Roof pitch to be 6/12 
or Mormon style, asphalt shingles; vinyl windows; siding to be composite 
material or wood. 
Location: 1023 E. Vaughn Dr. 

Zoned: Open Space (OS) 

Application presented by Mary Ann Bennett. She told they need a place to secure their 
personal property. 

T. Hertz asked Mrs. Bennett if the water would come up, can the building be pulled out. 
Yes, per Mrs. Bennett. She explained there will be 9-ft. steel beams - the building 
erected on top of the beams - have ways of transporting it out in case of flood. 

G . Jorgensen asked if the structure will be stick built. Yes, per Mrs. Bennett. 

There was clarification of the property location. 

No further questions or comments from the board members. No questions or comments 
from the audience. 

Roll call - all ayes. Application approved as applied. 

5. Madison Consolidated School Corporation - c. of A. for demolition of two
story structure. Rebuild of a period correct style single family home using same 
recycled material, if possible. 
Location: 702 W. Third St. 

Zoned: Historic District Residential (HDR) 

Madison Consolidated School Corporation Building Trades instruction at the high school, 
David Bear, attended the meeting to present this application. He said they would like to 
seek permission to tear down the old Hugeback grocery store at 702 W. Third St. and 
replace it with a period style correct single family residence. 

T. Hertz asked M. Hoffinan if he has been inside this building. M. Hoffinan answered, 
yes he has. T. Hertz said he is afraid to go in it until it is stabilized. M. Hoffinan told 
that Mike Walro fell through the floor in the back, that's how bad it was - and, M. 
Hoffinan said he took an abbreviated tour because he wouldn't even walk through it
that's been about six months ago. T. Hertz said he knew it had been okayed to tear off 
the back end of the building. M. Hoffinan said there are structural problems on the front, 
and in talking with Mr. Bear he mentioned some new strains of mold that he hasn't seen 
before. Also, M. Hoffinan noted there are some problems with the brick exterior - it's 
just maintenance that hasn't been done through the years. 

Mr. Bear said the building was used by King's Daughters' Hospital for storage and the 
school corporation used it for storage. He said he doesn't know the how long it has been 
since someone has lived in it. 

P. Davis asked how long the school has owned it. Mr. Bear answered that the school 
corporation bought the property approximately four or five years ago before the Lydia 
Middleton renovation. 

Mr. Bear told that the back part/framed addition was the part that was in such bad shape 
and was demolished last week. He said that before that was tom down you could not get 



Page 6 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

249 

into the basement portion, but since they have tom the back part down you can look 
underneath into the basement part and see that the floor joists are sagging, what you can 
see of the floor joists they are wet, black, and covered with a white mold on the back part. 
Mr. Bear said the demolition crew would not go in the basement. 

M. McGee asked Mr. Bear, when you say you're going to try and use the materials ... 
Mr. Bear said originally what they would like to do is to save some of brick and use that 
either for a chimney for the new house or for a brick walkway/brick garden area, and 
possibly save some of the floor joists. He explained that a lot of times those old buildings 
have great old yellow poplar floor joists - sometimes on the first floor - sometimes 
between the first and second floor. He said what he saw on the first floor, those could not 
be salvaged, but there is the possibility that some of those larger floor joists between the 
first floor and second floor could be salvaged. R. Saueressig asked if those are 2 x 12's. 
Mr. Bear answered, yes - full 2 x 12's. 

R. Saueressig asked about the building that will be put up, it will be used for what? 
Mr. Bear answered it will be a single family residence. R. Saueressig asked if it will be a 
rental or a single family. Mr. Bear said somebody local will buy it. Also Mr. Bear told it 
will be period style correct for that neighborhood. He further said they will do a little bit 
of research - either shotgun style or cottage style house in the neighborhood of 1,400 
square feet, something that would fit the neighborhood that would look like it was built in 
the early 1900's. He also said it will probably be single story and they would like to use 
wood siding on the house, a new type of wood siding - possibly composite wood siding 
made by Louisiana Pacific, and would use half-round gutters, possibly have a recycled 
front doorlhistorically correct front door out of a federal building. T. Hertz asked if there 
will be a basement. No, per Mr. Bear. 

Mr. Bear said this is actually a double lot lot where the grocery store used to be and 
another lot west of there. He explained that at one time there was a shotgun style house 
west of the grocery store - it burned during the 60's so that lot also actually is a double 
lot and probably the house would go on that lot - not where the grocery store is right now 
but to the west. Also, he said the back portion where the grocery store is right now, that 
was just tom off, would be off-street parking as there is no parking - would have parking 
off Lincoln Avenue. 

G. Jorgensen said this building would come under the definition of in-fill. She asked Mr. 
Bear if the plans are spaciously correct. Yes, per Mr. Bear. He told that part of the 
program that they have in the Building Trades program is that they have the boys help 
pick the house plan, it's sort of a history lesson as far as the style houses that they build, 
so he has submitted three or four house plans - it will be very similar haven't picked 
one definite yet. G. Jorgensen confirmed with Mr. Brown they will come back before 
this board. Right, per Mr. Brown, will come back. R. Saueressig told Mr. Brown that the 
plans submitted are more of a craftsman style house than they are the tum of the century. 

R. Saueressig asked if the rest of the property will be lawn, parking lot, or ... 
Mr. Brown said primarily lawn but they would like to have at least one off-street parking 
spot. 

G. Jorgensen remarked this is a case of demolition by neglect, it has been neglected for a 
long time, lack of maintenance causing deep structural distress. She said it really is a 
great loss for the historic district - it's a shame it got to this point - was a real fine 
example of federal architectural - you can see where windows have been taken out over 



Page 7 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

250 

time. Mr. Brown said he didn't know how long it was a grocery store, didn't know if it 
was originally built as a business or not, but it is a federal style building. 

M. Hoffman asked Mr. Brown if he isn't working with John Stacier with some plans. 
Yes, per Mr. Brown - he talked with John Stacier about perhaps getting plans from 
Historic Madison and working with Historic Madison as far as coming up with a set of 
plans that would fit that neighborhood. 

R. Saueressig asked Mr. Brown if this will include a garage. Mr. Brown answered, 
possibly, but most of those houses down there did not have a garage. He added if they 
did do a garage, it would be probably a detached garage to look more like a carriage 
house. 

Audience member, Bill Eldridge, said they live directly adjacent to the property in 
question and they realize if they don't take the building down . He said 
his concern is the mold issue primarily - there are things in that basement we probably 
don't even want to think about. He asked what is going to be done to protect the 
neighborhood when they take down the building. Mr. Brown answered that the school 
corporation has hired Teton Corp. to remove the back portion so they will seek a 
demolition contractor to remove the building. Mr. Brown asked Mr. Eldridge ifhe had 
looked in the basement. Mr. Eldridge answered "no" he didn't want to look in the 
basement - has stayed away from the building. Mr. Eldridge said his question is, is there 
going to be anything done to help remediate the mold issue before they take it all apart 
because it will be exposed to the air? Mr. Brown said he cannot answer that - would 
think that for health reasons the mold issue would have to be taken care of because 
something will have to be done to contain that. Mr. Eldridge told Mr. Brown he 
appreciates that they will recycle/reuse the bricks but at the same time he was astounded 
when they tore off the back part that they didn't recycle anything - the aluminum siding 
went in the dumpster - he thought that was atrocious - they could have at least made 
some attempt to recycle some of that. Additionally, Mr. Eldridge told Mr. Brown he 
knew that wasn't Mr. Brown's job, it was Teton's job - that should have been part of the 
deal. Mr. Brown said the back portion, where the roof had leaked, there was a 
tremendous amount of rot in the wood and there was vinyl siding. Mr. Eldridge said they 
live next door - they saw what was coming out of there - a little bit of the copper was 
recyclable. 

Mr. Eldridge said the other point he wants to make is that the parking in that 
neighborhood, right now, is a real problem and if they put a single family home in there 
with only one parking place, that will just compound the problem. Mr. Eldridge said he 
thought the plan was for a house and a garage - that's what they were told through the 
grapevine. Mr. Brown said if they can get two places on Lincoln, they would like to do 
that because there's only about half a space on the west lot. 

No further questions or comments from the board members or audience. 

T. Hertz reiterated the house design is another issue and will have to come before this 
board - the vote tonight is for the demolition. 

Roll call 

L. Wenning 

R. Saueressig 

Approve - they should try to salvage all that they can - it's a 
shame they were tossing out the copper. 
Approve 



PageS 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

T.Hertz 
G . Jorgensen 
M.McGee 
P. Davis 

Tabled Items: 

Approve 
Approve 
Approve 
Disapprove 

251 

6. SIRPC on behalf of homeowner: Mary Carver - c. of A. for new vinyl double 
hung 611 design windows; new insulated steel front door; and traditional style 
vinyl siding on back addition only. 
Location: 631 Broadway St. 

Zoned: Historic District Residential (HDR) 

Application presented by Southeastern Indiana Regional Planning Commission 
representative, Patty Jackson. Ms. Jackson distributed information packets to each board 
member. The packets contained information regarding all three applications (#6, #7, and 
#8). 

Mrs. Jackson told the board members they would see on the top of the packet she gave 
them a copy of the pictures of the exterior of the home. She explained these are pictures 
that were taken for State Historic Preservation review. She told she has done a chart for 
the three properties (applications 6, 7, and 8). 

Mrs. Jackson said she wanted to give a little history of this project - this is the City of 
Madison Owner Occupied Rehab Program and SIRPC applied on behalf of the City of 
Madison to get grant funds to do minor rehab and repair work to low to moderate income 
residents within the city limits. 

Mrs. Jackson explained that 631 Broadway Street is one of the applicants and the lady 
who lives there is disabled and she does not drive, she has a lot of medical issues, does 
not have the money to do any repairs to her home. Further, Mrs. Jackson told when they 
applied for the grant they applied for $300,000.00 and received funds for only half of it. 
Mrs. Jackson said they received a grant from the Housing Preservation Program from the 
USDA Rural Development to try to supplement what they didn't get. 

Ms. Carver, per Mrs. Jackson, is elderly so she also qualifies for a grant from the USDA 
Rural Development 504 Program which is an additional $7,500.00 - so there is a total of 
$18,291.40 to spend on her property and when she (Mrs. Jackson) was in front of the 
board a month ago or so the board had asked her to get a comparison on Hardie siding 
verses vinyl siding and to be honest with the board they deleted that - the vinyl siding 
from Ms. Carver's work write up because they cannot afford to do it. Ms. Carver's bid 
came in at $21,025.00 so it was around $3,000.00 over budget from what they had to 
spend so the vinyl siding they will not be doing - the aluminum siding on the back is not 
in that bad of condition. 

In referring to the chart, Mrs. Jackson said that 631 Broadway is contributing to the 
historic district. On another chart she read the plan for new wood windows and a new 
wood door, which are the two things that are being discussed this evening. Mrs. Jackson 
said they would have to delete the following from Ms. Carver's work write up: delete the 
vinyl siding (which is a given), delete the handicap accessible bathroom (she has a 
bathtub right now she can't get in and out of it very well- will put in a walk-in shower, 
new toilet, new vanity so Ms. Carver can use her bathroom a little bit better), a lot of 



Page 9 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

252 

structural problems, a lot of moisture problems - will put on a new roof but will be using 
the same materials as what is already there so that did not need to be brought before the 
board this evening. Also, Mrs. Jackson told that Ms. Carver's house has a lot of bubbling 
paint in her kitchen from the moisture from the bad gutters and the roof leaks - would 
have to delete that from her work write up - would not fix the walls in the kitchen - or, 
can delete a new furnace if they do new wood windows and wood door. 

Mrs. Jackson told that at the bottom she had done a big comparison - she got with 
Richard Cart, the contractor with the lowest bid on the project, and he gave a bid of the 
vinyl windows at $3,050.00 verses the wood windows being $4,800.00 so a difference of 
$1,750.00 - the steel insulated door was $300.00 and a new wood door is $1,000.00. 
Mrs. Jackson said she did get with John Stacier with HMljust this evening around 4:00 
who was nice enough to take them to see if there would be a wood door they could 
salvage and put on the front of Ms. Carver's house - there wasn't one that would fit. 

Mrs. Jackson said as the board members go down through the list they have proposed 
they can repair and paint the existing wood windows and put new storm windows on, 
new door, and on the right the members could see all the items that would need to be 
deleted. Mrs. Jackson went on to say, if they do just new wood windows they would still 
have to delete the vinyl siding, delete the front door, and handicap accessible bathroom in 
order to be able to afford to do what the board is asking. She went on to say, if they 
repair the windows, install storm windows, and do any insulating then all they would 
need to delete is the vinyl siding. So, Mrs. Jackson said that Ms. Carver would like to 
have new windows - she cannot open her windows but she is leaving it up to the board 
this evening can afford to do it either way. Mrs. Jackson noted they can paint the 
windows, will have them reg lazed, will repair broken windows - won't be able to make 
them so that Ms. Carver can open them and they stay open - don't have the money to do 
that, but will be able to get them so they can be opened and then will put new storm 
windows over the top. 

G. Jorgensen asked for clarification if Ms. Carver would or would not be able to open the 
windows. Mrs. Jackson answered that Ms. Carver probably wouldn't be able to open the 
windows even if they did them .... will get the windows to open - Mrs. Carver probably 
doesn't have the strength to open them - she is a survivor of cancer and several strokes. 
Mrs. Jackson said she knew that Ms. Carver would be very pleased if she could open her 
windows because if there is a fire she has her two granddaughters that live with her and 
she raises them (the granddaughters) so money is very tight for her. Mrs. Jackson said 
she knows and understands this is a contributing house but thinks it would be very 
important that Ms. Carver have windows that she can open in her home so she can get out 
if there is a fire. G. Jorgensen remarked there are allowances for safety issues. 
R. Saueressig asked if there is a rear door. Mrs. Jackson answered there is a side door 
that is not directly in the back - it's just off the kitchen just before you would go back to 
the little addition where the master bedroom is. 

G. Jorgensen asked Mrs. Jackson if there was a way to get a salvaged door would they 
like to use something like that. Sure, per Mrs. Jackson - that would be great. 
G. Jorgensen said she didn't know what the dimensions would be ... Mrs. Jackson 
remarked she should have gotten them from the contractor - she didn't get the total 
dimensions - thinks he said what was there is a 34 or 38 in. door. 

M. McGee asked Mrs. Jackson when a person applies for the various grants is that a one 
time deal or can they ever come back and apply for more funding. Mrs. Jackson 
explained for this program it is a Community Development Block grant and in this 



Page 10 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

253 

program they can only spend up to $15,000.00 but they have a lot of other grant sources 
so on Ms. Carver's they are spending more. Further, Mrs. Jackson explained they have to 
live and keep the home for three years as their primary residence as long as they do that 
it reverts to a 100% grant and is completely forgiven at the end of the three years if they 
want to try and reapply for more funding, they could do that but not until the three years 
have expired. Mrs. Jackson said there is a different program - it is called Home Dollars
it's a home program where they actually approve you for more money to spend, but there 
is a lot of red tape with that one and they don't like to get involved with it - it's a lot 
more detail. Mrs. Jackson noted they had a lot of people apply for this (Community 
Grant) program as obviously the economy is very depressed right now and they had a lot 
of people and phone calls - up to 100's of phone calls and of those they had 20 some 
families approved and then they had to cut ten because they only got funding for half of 
what they requested. Mrs. Jackson said they target special needs - you score more points 
if you're disabled, single female, head of household, elderly, or disabled and she would 
say that probably nine out of ten houses they are doing, there is a disabled person that 
lives in it - or elderly, six of them are elderly - so, they are targeting families that won't 
ever have extra income coming in and anything they can do to help them they want to be 
able to do. 

G. Jorgensen confirmed with Mrs. Jackson that at this point they are not going to do the 
vinyl. Mrs. Jackson said the vinyl, just take that one away because no matter what, they 
can't afford it. G. Jorgensen then remarked the focus would be on structural issues. This 
is right per Mrs. Jackson. G. Jorgensen said she would see if someone in the community 
might have a door. 

Audience member, Mike Pittman, said he walked past the house that is being talked about 
as well as the one next door to it and those people are putting a tremendous amount work 
into that house to make it historically correct and historically appropriate and he would 
hope the board does not approve anything that would detract from the historic nature of 
the neighborhood - this would totally demoralize - they have been working out there in 
the 90 degree heat and he said what they are doing to their house is a lot of work, a lot of 
effort, and a lot of blood, sweat, and tears. Mr. Pittman said he wants the board to make 
this woman as comfortable as possible but yet also preserve the house. 

T. Hertz said the vote is for no vinyl siding, front door questionable, ... 

G. Jorgensen made the comment that she did have a chance to speak with Greg Sekula 
with the Historic Landmark Foundation and he made a comment about the windows in 
that he was concerned those were married joints - that they were not _____ _ 
windows and that at some time they were put together. G. Jorgensen asked Mrs. Jackson 
if Ms. Carver knew anything about this. No, per Mrs. Jackson who had asked Ms. Carver 
about the windows the other day and she said she's not ever been able to open them since 
she bought the home - not sure who she bought the home from - can't remember. 
G. Jorgensen said she would like to have more information about the windows. Mrs. 
Jackson noted that the contractor said he thought the windows could be painted and get 
them to open and close - fix the broken glass - put on storm windows that would help 
with the energy costs and things like that. G. Jorgensen asked what would be the cost of 
that. Mrs. Jackson said the repair was actually like $500.00 cheaper than what the bid 
was because you're looking at painting and all that stuff - scraping lose paint - it was a 
little bit cheaper so that was good as they are already over budget anyway. G. Jorgensen 
asked if that price would be for the storm windows too. Yes, per Mrs. Jackson - that 
would include putting on the storm windows. G. Jorgensen also asked if Mrs. Jackson 
knew what Ms. Carver would prefer. Mrs. Jackson answered that Ms. Carver would like 
new windows that she can open and close. 



Page 11 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

254 

P. Davis said the original wish list on this house was to get rid of the back room 
altogether and put on a new room. Right, per Mrs. J ackson ~ proposal was to get rid of 
the back room but they can't afford to do that - there are a lot of structural issues they 
need to address that is going on under the back room. Additionally, Mrs. Jackson said 
they would like to revamp the roof a little bit. 

G. Jorgensen said she would like to see Ms. Carver be able to open the back windows
those that are already across the back. Mrs. Jackson said she believes those are wood in 
the very back room. P. Davis told they are wood with aluminum storm windows. 

J. Stotts clarified that Mrs. Jackson is wanting the board to consider the replacement of 
the windows - proposing to install new energy star rated double hung vinyl windows 
with 6/1 design and to replace the front door with an insulated steel door. This is correct 
per Mrs. Jackson. 

End of Tape 1 - Side A 

Roll Call
T.Hertz 
R. Saueressig 
L. Wenning 
G. Jorgensen 

M.McGee 

R. Saueressig 

Approve 
Approve 
Approve 
Disapprove (would like to see front windows painted and use 
storm windows) 
Disapprove (would like to see front windows painted and use 
storm windows) 
Disapprove (would like to see front windows painted and use 
storm windows) 

Tie vote. According to the Historic District Ordinance Overlay if an application is not 
denied by four votes, such application shall be approved. 

Application approved as applied. 

7. SIRPC on behalf of homeowner: George Perry - c. of A. for new vinyl double 
hung windows; and traditional style vinyl siding. 
Location: 902 Vine St. 

Zoned: Historic District Residential (HDR) 

This application also presented by Mrs. Patty Jackson. Also present was the homeowner, 
Mr. Perry. 

Mrs. Jackson referred to the previously distributed information packet. She advised the 
bid for this property actually came in a little under bid at $10,525.00. She explained with 
the quotes the board had asked her to get, they had the Hardie siding quoted and the new 
wood windows which increased the cost $3,375.00 so that put them over budget 
$2,608.60. She said on Mr. Perry's house they only had $11,291.40 because he is not 
over the age of 62 so does not benefit from the ________ _ 

Mrs. Jackson said this house is not considered contributing and if the board members 
have had a chance to go by it they would see that other properties around it do have vinyl 
siding. Mr. Perry said his house is the only one in his area that does not have vinyl siding 
on it - a couple of other houses are falling down (Mr. Perry provided pictures to the 
board members). Mrs. Jackson said they would like to do the vinyl siding and would like 



Page 12 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

255 

to put in new vinyl windows. She explained that she showed in the chart if they do new 
wood windows and Hardie siding what they would need to delete - would need to delete 
insulation; he currently has a fuse box for electric - want to upgrade to a 200 amp panel 
box and would have to improve the electric coming in; repair an overhead light; there is a 
vanity light that plugs into a strip light in order for them to have light in there so want to 
get some overhead lighting and NFGI outlet. Further, Mrs. Jackson said if they just 
repair the existing windows and install new storm windows and do new Hardie siding, 
they would have to delete insulation and . Mrs. Jackson said she has 
talked with George about the Hardie siding because they could possibly make that work 
but he would prefer the vinyl because he is disabled and he is not going to be able to get 
out there and paint the siding and upkeep it. G. Jorgensen commented to Mrs. Jackson 
that more or less what they are going to be doing is to try to make the improvements and 
make Mr. Perry comfortable. Mrs. Jackson said they are doing a few things structural 
inside as there is a soft spot in his floor and they are actually going to be taking up the 
floor, redo beams, and putting down a new sub floor - also put some crawl space under 
the house to get some air circulating under there. 

No further questions or comments from the board. No questions or comments from the 
audience. 

Roll call - all ayes. Application approved as applied. 

8. SIRPC on behalf of homeowner: Tiffany Gregory-Dane & Jennifer Gregory 
- C. of A. for traditional style vinyl siding. 
Location: 536 Spring St. 

Zoned: Medium Density Residential (R-8) 

Same as applications # 6 and # 7, this application presented by Patty Jackson. Mrs. 
Jackson told that this project came in way over budget - had $11,000.00 or so to spend
it came in at $21,025.00. She said she is asking the board to approve vinyl siding but she 
doesn't know that they will be able to do it - right now it is not going to happen, but there 
is the possibility that it could so she wanted to go ahead and present to the board. 

Mrs. Jackson explained that this house has a lot of problems but one thing that is really 
important for the board to know is that there is a disabled child that lives in this home - is 
in a wheelchair - and they do not have a stove in the kitchen, they have a campfue two 
burner grill to do their cooking on, there are electrical wires that hang down and is very 
unsafe, the refrigerator has been replaced five or six times because of the electrical issues, 
so they will be addressing a lot of issues on the inside. Further, she said they will be 
replacing the roof but they are going to be replacing it with like materials. She said a lot 
of the windows in the home had already been replaced so they won't be doing anything 
with those. So, Mrs. Jackson said if they have the money to do the vinyl siding, they 
would like to do it so they can finish out the windows and make it all come together and 
look a little bit better. 

Mrs. Jackson told she also did a chart for this application. 

Mrs. Jackson said they try to focus on securing the structure on the outside, leaks in the 
roof and things like that - the siding that is on there is not in horrible condition - it could 
stand some tender loving care, but it's not as big a priority as the bathroom that is about 
ready to fall through the floor and things like that and getting them a stove. 



Page 13 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

256 

P. Davis asked about the broken windows - plan to repair those? Yes, per Mrs. Jackson
going to just repair the glass - trying to repair instead of replace because of the costs they 
can save. 

T. Hertz asked Mrs. Jackson if she wants the board to vote on the vinyl siding in case 
they can get the money. Mrs. Jackson said, yes - there are funds that have been given to 
the weatherization program and they are trying to partner with Ohio Valley Opportunities 
who might be able to pay for the furnace and if they can, that would free up about 
$4,000.00 for them to do some other things. Mrs. Jackson told there are a lot of things 
they have to delete. 

R. Saueressig asked what type of siding the house has now. Aluminum, per Mrs. 
Jackson. G. Jorgensen expressed the desire to recycle the aluminum. Mrs. Jackson 
remarked she thinks the contractor will do that. 

G. Jorgensen stated this property is noncontributing and this project will not harm the 
historic district. She also said she thought it is good they are doing the roof. 

R. Saueressig asked about the boarded up windows. Mrs. Jackson said she believes those 
have been fixed since taking the pictures. P. Davis said wherever you see those boards, 
those are windows. 

No further questions or comments from the board. No questions or comments from the 
audience. 

Roll call - all ayes. Application approved as applied. 

Business - Old or New: 

Old Business: 

Discussion regarding the Madison Residential and Commercial Design Review 
Guidelines. Numerous comments from board members, board attorney, and the 
audience. 

Ultimately, G. Jorgensen made the motion to send the guidelines to the City Council for 
their approval to use as a guideline for the HDBR - seconded by R. Saueressig. 

Roll call-

Linda Wenning 
Mindy McGee 
R. Saueressig 
G. Jorgensen 
Paul Davis 
T. Hertz 

Approve 
Approve 
Approve 
Approve 
Disapprove 
Approve 

The Madison Residential and Commercial Design Review Guidelines will be forwarded 
to the Madison City Council for their approval to use as a guideline for the HDBR. 



Page 14 
Historic District Board of Review 
June 22, 2009 

No further business to be brought before the board. 

G. Jorgensen made the motion to adjourn - seconded by P. Davis. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

257 

***************************************** 

HISTORIC DISTRICT BOARD OF REVIEW 

Minutes July 20, 2009 

The City of Madison Historic District Board of Review held a regular meeting on 
Monday, July 20, 2009 at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall. Tony Hertz, chairman, presided 
over the meeting with the following board members present: Linda Wenning, 
Virginia Jorgensen, Robert Saueressig, Paul Davis, and Dirk Cheatham. Also 
present were: Jennifer Joas, attorney; and Louann Waller, secretary. Absent were: 
board member, bittda McGee, and Building Inspector, Mike Hoffman. 

tniftdy 
There were no additi6ns or corrections to the minutes from the previous meeting. 
D. Cheatham made the motion to approve the minutes - seconded by P. Davis - all ayes. 
Minutes stand approved as recorded and distributed. 

New Application: 

1. Main Source Bank - c. of A. for commercial style entry doors - fifteen (15) 
clear glass units with grids. 
Location: 215 E. Main Street 

Zoned: Central Business District (CBD) 

Faith Todd, Unlimited Glass representative, presented this application on behalf of Main 
Source Banle Ms. Todd told that the bid is to replace the two pairs of doors the 
existing doors of the main entrance and for the interior vestibule that goes into the main 
lobby. She explained what is there now are wood doors with true divided lights that have 
bubble glass, if you will, and the existing doors have floor mounted closures and the 
closures are bad - you go in that door and you are going to get hit in the rear with the 
door right now. Ms. Todd said that a floor mounted closure requires the removal of the 
existing doors and taking up the threshold to be able to replace that closure system that is 
underneath the doors, if you will, and it is cheaper honestly to put in new doors. 
Ms. Todd said they have come up with a bid to put in commercial style entry doors - she 
presented a brochure to the board members - commercial style aluminum doors are 
basically exactly what we have here at the entrance to City Hall. Further Ms. Todd said 
the doors will be bronze in color and they will be glazed with one-inch thick tempered, 


